
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

Plaintiff,

)
)

)

)
)

)

)

)

)

)
)

CIVIL ACTION NO.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

v.

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by the authority of the Attorney General of the United States

and through the undersigned attorneys, acting at the request of the Administrator of the United

States Environmental Protection Agency (UEP A"), files this Complaint and alleges as follows:

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a civil action brought pursuant to the Clean Air Act ("CAA"), 42 U.S.C.

§7401 et seq., seeking civil penalties against against Honeywell International Inc. (Defendant) for

violations of Section 112(r) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), and provisions of the Risk

Management Program regulations promulgated thereunder at 40 C.F.R. Part 68, at its facility in

Baton Rouge, Louisiana, with respect to operations in the ton cylinder area, the Genetron-143a

process and the Genetron-22 process related to incidents that occurred on July 20, July 29, and

August 12, 2003.
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II. JURISDICTION. AUTHORITY AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties hereto,

pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,

1345 and 1355.

3. Venue is proper in this Judicial District, pursuant to Section 113 (b) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (c) and § 1395(a), as it is the judicial district

where the violations occured as well as where the Defendant can be found.

4. Notice of the commencement of this action has been given to the State of

Louisiana, as required by Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b).

III. PARTIES

5. Plaintiff is the United States of America acting on behalf of the Administrator of

the EPA pursuant to Section 305 ofthe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7605, and 28 U.S.C. §§ 516 and 519.

6. Honeywell International Inc. is a corporation that owns and operates a

chemical manufacturing plant in Baton Rouge, Louisiana that is par of its Speciality Materials

Group, where the alleged violations occured (the "Baton Rouge Facility" or "facility").

7. Defendant is a "person" within the meaning of Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42

U.S.C. § 7602(e), and is subject to civil actions under Section 113(b) ofthe CAA, 42 U.S.c. §

7413(b).

IV. STATUTORY BACKGROUND

8. The CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq., established a comprehensive scheme for

pollution prevention and control, as described in Section 101 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7401. The

CAA required EPA to promulgate regulations to protect and enhance the quality of the Nation's
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air.

9. Section 112 (r) ofthe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), was enacted to prevent the

accidental release and to minimize the consequences of any such release of any listed substances

or any other extremely hazardous substance.

10. Section 112(r)(l) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(l), provides in pertinent par

as follows:

It shall be the objective of the regulations and programs authorized under this
subsection to prevent the accidental release and to minimize the consequences of
any such release of any substance listed pursuant to paragraph (3) or any other
extremely hazardous substance. The owners and operators of stationar sources
producing, processing, handling or storing such substances have a general duty in
the same maner and to the same extent as Section 654 of Title 29 (29 V.S.C. §
654)) to identify hazards which may result from such releases using appropriate
hazard assessment techniques, to design and maintain a safe facility taking such
steps as are necessar to prevent releases, and to minimize the consequences of
accidental releases which do occur.

11. "Accidental release" is defined in Section 112(r)(2)(A) as "an unanticipated

emission of a regulated substance or other extremely hazardous substance into the ambient air

from a stationar source."

12. Section 112(r)(3) requires that EP A promulgate a list of substances, together with

threshold quantities, which, in the case of accidental release, "are known to cause or may

reasonably be anticipated to cause death, injury, or serious adverse effects to human health or the

environment." EPA has promulgated a list of regulated substances at 40 C.F.R. § 68.130 which

includes, among others, chlorine and hydrogen fluoride.

13. Section 112(r)(7) of the CAA, 42 V.S.C. § 7412(r)(7), requires that EPA

promulgate regulations describing how stationar sources are to prevent, detect, and respond to

accidental releases of regulated substances. Stationar sources covered by these requirements
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must develop and implement a "risk management program" that includes a hazard assessment, a

prevention program, and an emergency response program.

14. EPA promulgated 40 C.F.R. Par 68 (Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions)

which implements Section 112(r)(7), 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(7), and sets forth specific requirements

concerning the prevention of accidental releases applicable to "covered processes" at "stationary

sources" as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 68.3.

15. Under the regulations, the owners or operators ofa stationar source must describe

the risk management program for all covered processes in a risk management plan ("RMP") that

is registered and submitted to EP A, and made available to the public. 40 C.F.R. § 68.150.

16. Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 V.S.C. § 7413(b), provides that whenever the owner

or operator of a major stationar source violates any requirement or prohibition of Subchapter I

ofthe CAA (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401-7515), the Administrator ofEPA shall commence a civil action

for injunctive relief and to assess and recover a civil penalty up to $27,500 per day for each such

violation occurring between January 30, 1997 and March 15, 2004, and up to $32,500 per day for

violations thereafter occurring from March 16,2004 through Januar 12,2009 (As adjusted

pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,28 U.S.C. § 2461, as

amended, and the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996,31 V.S.c. § 3701; 69 Fed. Reg.

7121 (2004) and 73 Fed. Reg. 75340 (2008)).

V. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

17. At all relevant times, Defendant operated stationary sources producing, processing,

handling, or storing extremely hazardous substances at its Baton Rouge Facility, including

antimony pentachloride, chlorine and hydrogen fluoride.

4

Case 3:09-cv-00795-JJB-DLD     Document 1       09/24/2009     Page 4 of 18



18. At all relevant times, Defendant produced fluorocarbon-based refrigerants (brand

name Genetron) and calcium chloride at the Facility. At all relevant times, Defendant also

operated a reclamation and recycling facility for Genetron refrigerants and their shipping

containers at the Facility.

19. At all relevant times, Defendant's operations related to the manufacture of Genetron

-143a and Genetron-22 were "covered processes," as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 68.3, and involved,

among other things, the use of listed substances chlorine and hydrogen fluoride in amounts that

exceed threshold levels.

20. At all relevant times, Defendant's "covered processes" were subject to the

requirements of Program 3 of the regulations pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.l0(d). Program 3

requires a owner or operator to submit a RMP, develop and implement a management system,

conduct a step-by-step hazard analysis of process, equipment, and procedures to identify each

point at which an accidental release could occur, implement prevention requirements, and

develop and implement an emergency response program. Section 40 C.F.R. § 68.l2(d) and Part

68, Subpar D.

21. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.l2(d)(5) and Part 68, Subpar G, the deadline for

Defendant to submit the first RMP to EP A was June 21, 1999.

22. At all relevant times, the Baton Rouge Facilty was subject to the CAA "General

Duty Clause" at Section 112(r)(l), 42 U.S.C. 7412(r)(l) regarding the prevention of "accidental

releases," as defined in CAA Section 112(r)(2)(A), 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(2)(A) and 40 C.F.R. §

68.3.
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Antimony Pentachloride Release

23. One of the products manufactured at the facility was chlorodifluoromethane

(also known as R-22) refrigerant which was marketed by Defendant as Genetron 22 or G-22. G-

22 is a gas at ambient temperatures and a colorless liquid when compressed and stored in

cylinders or other containers.

24. At all relevant times, Defendant used antimony pentachloride, a highly corrosive

liquid, as a catalyst in the G-22 refrigerant manufactuing process. On contact with water vapor

it forms hydrochloric acid.

25. Antimony pentachloride is an "extremely hazardous substance" as that term is

used in Section 112(r)(1) of the CAA.

26. During the G-22 manufacturing process the antimony pentachloride becomes

contaminated with other substances, and the residual contaminated antimony pentachloride,

known as "spent catalyst" or "spent antimony pentachloride" is stored or sent for reclamation.

27. At all relevant times, Defendant packaged both G-22 and spent catalyst in one-ton

cylinders ("ton cylinders") each of which had a unique serial number. Ton cylinders containing

G-22 were typically painted green and white and fitted with at least one pressure relief valve.

Ton cylinders containing spent catalyst were typically painted gray and fitted with fusible plugs

(instead of 
relief valves) designed to melt and slowly relieve pressure if a cylinder is exposed to

fire.

28. In 1998, another plant owned by Defendant shipped a ton cylinder containing over

3300 pounds of spent catalyst, with serial number 83-3410 and labeled antimony pentachloride,

to a third par for reclamation. The cylinder had a valve configuration consistent with spent
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catalyst.

29. The third part misidentified the material in the cylinder as refrigerant, relabeled

the cylinder as R-22 and shipped the cylinder, along with several others, to the Baton Rouge

Facility.

30. Defendant received Cylinder 83-3410 at the Baton Rouge Facility on December

12, 1998, and then placed it in an outside storage area.

31. Defendant pressure tests used ton cylinders every five years to comply with

Deparment of Transportation regulations. At all relevant times, Defendant sorted used

refrigerant cylinders that needed to be retested and prepared them to be shipped to off-site

facilties for testing. This activity took place in the ton cylinder area.

32. To prepare used refrigerant cylinders for retesting, employees in the ton

cylinder would place up to 10 cylinders on a rack and connect hoses to the valves on the

refrigerant cylinders so that residual material in the cylinders could be vented. The cylinders

were then flushed with nitrogen to remove residual refrigerant. Plugs and valves would then be

removed and replaced with plastic plugs.

33. On July 29, 2003, Defendant's employee loaded the ton cylinder 83-3410 containing

spent catalyst, but mislabeled as R-22 refrigerant, onto the rack in the ton cylinder area, along

with other cylinders, to be prepared for off-site retesting.

34. Upon information and belief, when a corroded valve on 83-3410 did not open, the

employee attempted to vent the contents by removing the fusible plug with a wrench. The

antimony pentachloride was thereby immediately released into the atmosphere and overwhelmed

the employee who died from the effects.
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35. A vapor cloud of antimony pentachloride was visible from off-site and

carried an odor off-site.

36. Defendant's operations in the ton cylinder area are subject to the requirements of

Section 112(r)(l) ofthe CAA.

37. Defendant failed to identify potential hazards in the ton cylinder area in accordance

with Section 112(r)(l) requirements of the CAA. Specifically, Defendant:

a. failed to adequately identify potential hazards for recovering and

purging ton cylinders using appropriate hazard assessment techniques;

b. failed to perform a job safety analysis or hazard assessment ofthe ton

cylinder area before the incident which could have identified foreseeable hazards of the job;

c. failed to manage its cylinders safely, and its standard operating

procedures did not address adequately safety precautions and deviations in the process.

38. Defendant also failed to design and maintain a safe facility in the ton cylinder

area in accordance with Section 112r(l) requirements of the CAA. Specifically:

a. Honeywell's standard operating procedures failed to address sufficiently

deviations to the process and foreseeable potential hazards in the process such as exposure to

hazardous and highly pressurized contents when opening valves or fusible plugs, and procedures

for inoperable valves;

b. Honeywell failed to provide the training to employees necessary to recognize

hazards and abnormal conditions when handling ton cylinders, and to prevent releases of

hazardous substances.
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Chlorine Release

39. At all relevant times, Defendant used chlorine as a raw material in the manufacture

of refrigerant G-143a at its Baton Rouge Facility.

40. Chlorine is extremely hazardous to humans and is listed under 40 C.F.R. § 68.130.

41. At all relevant times, Defendant kept chlorine in liquid phase during the process

through a cooling system. That system is a carbon steel vertical shell and tube heat exchanger

which consists of a bundle of tubes inside an outer shell. Chlorine flowed inside the tubes and a

brine coolant flowed over the outside of the tubes within the shelL. The coolant circulated in a

loop through the chlorine cooler and other process equipment by means of a pump.

42. Sometime in the late 1990s, Defendant modified the chlorine feed system so that

chlorine was supplied to the G-143a manufacturing process from a rail tanker car instead of the

formerly used ton cylinder. This changed greatly increased the amount of chlorine available to

the process.

43. At all relevant times, liquid chlorine from the cooler flowed through an isolation

valve to the G-143a reactor. The reactor isolation valve was normally open when the plant was

ruing.

44. At all relevant times, the G-143a process was controlled by personnel from the Omni

Control Room. In about 1998, Honeywell converted the control room into a positive pressure

room which was designed to provide short-term protection for control room personnel during a

chemical release by preventing the inflow of airborne contaminants so that personnel could safely

shut down the G-143a process in the event of an emergency. Clean air was piped into the control

room from an air intake at the highest point of the plant through duct work.
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45. On July 20, 2003, a chlorine release occurred in the G-143a process area when

chlorine mixed with the brine coolant in the chlorine cooler and then circulated through the brine

loop to the cooler pump where it was released into the atmosphere. Omni unit operators inside

the control room noticed a chlorine odor and an operator observed a leak near the G-143a coolant

system pumps. Before operators took action, the chlorine concentration inside and outside the

control room overwhelmed them and they evacuated.

46. The Omni control room positive pressure system did not fuction properly

because of holes in the ventilation duct work that allowed chlorine into the air ducts and because

an employee mistakenly pushed the "purge" button which opened the control room vents and

allowed additional chlorine into the room. Operators experienced difficulty breathing and were

forced to evacuate the control room before they could determine why chlorine was leaking from

the coolant pumps. The G-143a process was stil ruing when they left and the release of

chlorine continued for approximately 3.5 hours. Chlorine damaged the control room electronics

which became inoperable. The leak chlorine leak was finally stopped when the railcar valve was

manually closed by Honeywell's emergency response team.

47. Up to 14,000 pounds of chlorine was released during this accident.

48. Eight employees were transported to the hospital for medical evaluation and

treatment following the incident. A chlorine odor was observed more than 1.5 miles outside of

the Facility. Ten members of the surounding community sought treatment at a local emergency

room for health effects from the chlorine.

49. Defendant's operations involving the use of chlorine - a listed substance - in the

143a process are a covered process subject to the regulations of 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Subpart D.
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50. At all relevant times, Defendant's operating procedures for the G-143a process were

not in compliance with 40 C.F.R. Par 68, Subpart D, which required, inter alia, that Defendant:

(a) perform a process hazard analysis of 
the G-143a process including the brine coolant system

and positive pressure ventilation system (40 C.F.R. § 68.67); (b) compile process safety

information for use in the process hazard analysis (40 C.F.R. § 68.65); (c) develop written

procedures for management of change to the process (40 C.F.R. § 68.75); (d) develop written

operating procedures for safely conducting the process (40 C.F.R.§ 68.69); (e) perform

mechanical integrity testing of the process equipment (40 C.F.R. § 68.73).

51. At all relevant times, Defendant's process hazard analysis for the G-143a process did

not address adequately the possible failure of the equipment in the brine coolant system due to

chlorine contamination from failures of interconnected equipment - in violation of 40 C.F.R. §

68.67(c)(1).

52. At all relevant times, Defendant's process hazard analysis for the G-143a

process failed to provide an adequate description of the consequences of the failure of

engineering and administrative controls for the coolant system- in violation of 40 C.F.R. §

68.67( c)( 4).

53. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to establish and implement adequate

written procedures for management of the change ("MOC") resulting from the chlorine feed

system modification from ton cylinders to a railcar, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.75(a), (b) and

(c). The MOC conducted by Defendant did not adequately consider the impacts of 
introduction

of the railcar feed system into the process and did not recommend the integration of procedures

for isolating the railcar when shutting down the G-143a process.
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54. At all relevant times, Defendant's written operating procedures failed to adequately

address emergency shutdown procedures and conditions related to the brine utility system, in

violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.69(a)(l)(iv). As a result, chlorine from the railcar continued flowing

into the failed cooler even after the process was shut down resulting in a release of additional

chlorine to the atmosphere.

55. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to compile for the process hazard analysis

process safety information pertaining to equipment used in the G-143a process (the positive

pressure ventilation system design), in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(l)(v) .

56. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to compile for the process hazard analysis

process safety information pertaining to equipment used in the G-143a process (the design codes

and standards employed pertaining to the positive pressure ventilation system) in violation of 40

C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(l)(vi).

57. At all relevant times, Defendant's process hazard analysis did not address the

application of detection methodologies to provide early waring of releases, in violation of 40

C.F.R. § 68.67(c)(3).

58. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to establish and implement adequate written

procedures to manage changing the Omni control room ventilation system to a positive pressure

system, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.75(a), (b) and (c). Honeywell failed to address safe work

practices, the impact of change on health and safety, and employee training in its MOC

document.

59. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to conduct inspections and perform
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mechanical integrity tests on the Omni control room positive pressure ventilation system supply

air ducts, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.73(d)(l).

Hydrogen Fluoride Release

60. Hydrogen fluoride is hazardous to humans and is a listed substance under 40 C.F.R.

§ 68.130.

61. At all relevant times, Defendant used hydrogen fluoride to manufacture G-22

refrigerant. Liquid hydrogen fluoride is fed from storage vessels and heated to a gaseous state in

a vaporizer. In a connected reactor system, the gaseous hydrogen fluoride reacts with other

substances to form G-22 refrigerant.

62. After the plant shutdown due to the chlorine release in July 2003, Defendant

used a venturi stick procedure to evacuate the G-22 vaporizer. The plant had a general written

procedure for using venturi sticks to evacuate various liquids. Honeywell personnel reviewed the

generic venturi stick procedure and added specific references for hydrogen fluoride prior to

staring the work.

63. On August 13,2003, the operations deparment used the venturi stick to empty the

vaporizer. An operator monitoring the venturi process suspected a problem with the nitrogen

flow to the vaporizer, and opened and closed some valves to create a surge in the system and

clear any blockage. Flow to the sewer rapidly increased, causing the venturi stick to lift out of

the sewer, which created a cloud that contained hydrogen fluoride and sprayed the operator.

64. At all relevant times, the removal of hydrogen fluoride from the vaporizer was a

"covered process" subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Subpar D.

65. Upon information and belief, Defendant may have failed to comply with one or more
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provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Subpart D in its training and operating procedures for removing

the hydrogen fluoride by venturi stick method from the vaporizer.

VI. CLAIMS

COUNT I - VIOLATIONS OF THE GENERAL DUTY CLAUSE

66. Paragraphs 1- 38 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

67. Defendant's activities in the ton cylinder area, including the handling and venting of

ton cylinders in preparation for retesting, are activities subject to the requirements of the general

duty clause of Section 112(r)(l) of the CAA, 42 V.S.C. § 7412(r)(l).

68. As set forth more specifically in the general allegations, Defendant failed to identify

adequately potential hazards in the ton cylinder area in violation of Section 112r(l) of the CAA.

69. As set forth more specifically in the general allegations, Defendant failed to

design and maintain a safe facility in the ton cylinder area in violation of Section 112r(l) of the

CAA.

70. Pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.c. § 7413(b), as amended by 28

U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.c. § 3701, Defendant is liable for a civil penalty of up to $27,500 per

day for each violation of the general duty clause occuring in connection with the ton cylinder

area between Januar 30, 1997 and March 15, 2004, and up to $32;500 per day for violations

occurring thereafter through Januar 12,2009.

COUNT II - VIOLATIONS OF 40 C.F.R. PART 68. SUBPART D

71. Paragraphs 1- 22 and 39-67 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

72. At all relevant times, Defendant's operation involving the use of chlorine - a listed
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substance - in the G-143a manufacturing process was a "covered process" subject to the

regulations of 40 C.F.R. Par 68, Subpar D.

73. As set forth more specifically in the general allegations, Defendant's operations

in the G-143a manufacturing process violated numerous requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 68,

Subpar D, including requirements that Defendant: (a) perform a process hazard analysis of the

G-143a process, including the chlorine cooler system and Omni control room positive pressure

ventilation system (40 C.F.R. § 68.67(c)); compile process safety information for components of

the process, including the Omni control room positive pressure ventilation system equipment and

design (40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)); prepare adequate written procedures for management of change to

the process, including changes to the chlorine feed system and the Omni control room positive

pressure ventilation system (40 C.F.R. § 68.75); prepare adequate written operating procedures

for safely conducting the process including the brine coolant system (40 C.F.R. § 68.69); and

perform mechanical integrity testing of the process equipment for the Omni control room

positive pressure ventilation system (40 C.F.R. § 68.73).

74. At all relevant times, the G-22 manufacturing process and associated removal of

hydrogen fluoride from the vaporizer were "covered processes" subject to the requirements of 40

C.F.R. Part 68, Subpar D.

75. As set forth more specifically in the general allegations, Defendant may have failed

to comply with one or more provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Subpart D in its training and

operating procedures for removing the hydrogen fluoride by venturi stick method from the

hydrogen fluoride vaporizer.

76. Pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 V.S.C. § 7413(b), as amended by 28
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U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.C. § 3701, Defendant is liable for a civil penalty of up to $27,500 per

day for each violation of 40 C.F.R. Par 68, Subpar D, occurring in connection with the G-143a

manufacturing process and G-22 manufactuing process between January 30, 1997 and March

15, 2004, and up to $32,500 per day for each violation occurring thereafter.

VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, the United States of America, respectfully prays that:

a) Pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), as amended by 28

U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.C. § 3701, the Cour assess civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for

each violation of the general duty clause occurring in connection with the ton cylinder area

between Januar 30, 1997 and March 15,2004, and up to $32,500 per day for each violation

occuring thereafter;

b) Pursuant to Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), as amended by 28

U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.C. § 3701, the Cour assess civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for

each violation of 40 C.F.R. Par 68, Subpar D, occuring in connection with the G-143a

manufacturing process and G-22 manufacturing process between January 30, 1997 and March

15, 2004, and up to $32,500 per day for each violation occurring thereafter;

c) The United States be awarded its costs and expenses incured in this action; and
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d) The United States be awarded such other and further relief as the Cour may deem just and

proper.

Respectfully submitted for the United States,

Date '1/171 D~

f W. NJA IN FISHEROW
Deputy Sec on Chief
Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources

Division
U.S. Deparment of Justice

DaleO 7/)3/01 11::;;:fi;/t-Gt¿;
Trial Attorney
Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources

Division
U.S. Deparment of Justice
P.O. Box 7611
Ben Franklin Station
Washington, D.C. 20044-7611

(202) 514-2840
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Date: 09/23/2009

OF COUNSEL:

Evan L. Pearson
Senior Enforcement Counsel (6RC-ER)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue
Dallas, TX 75202-2733

DAVID R. DUGAS
United States Attorney
Middle District ofthe Louisiana

s/John J. Gaupp
JOHN 1. GAUPP, LBN 14976
Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorneys' Office
Middle District of Louisiana
Russell B. Long Federal Courthouse
777 Florida Street, Suite 208
Baton Rouge, LA 70801
225-389-0443
John. Gaupp~usdoj .gov
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